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5385 N. Nob Hill Florida 33351 
Phone: 954-121-8681 - Fax: 954-721~9202 

October 29, 2019 

Dear Board Members: 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of 
is scheduled for 9 

. Following is the advance agenda: 

1. Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the July 2, 2019 Meeting 

3. Consideration of Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates to perform the Audit for Fiscal Year 
Ending September 30, 2019 

4. Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 

B. Engineer 
1) Blacktop Resealing Recommendation 

2) Acceptance of COD Owned and Maintained Infrastructure 2019 Annual Report 

C. Manager 

5. Financial Reports 
A. Approval of Check Register 

B. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

6. Supervisors Requests and Audience Comments 

7. Adjournment 

Meetings are open to the 
CDD please visit the website: flm~~!!!:m2fil'.!!.f!!~~~~:Q!11 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
PORTOFINO SHORES 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Portofino Shores Community 

Development District was held on Tuesday, July 2, 2019 at 2:30 p.m. at the Shores 

Clubhouse, 5720 Spanish River Road, Fort Pierce, Florida 34951. 

Present and constituting a quorum: 

Al Zemola 
Henry Schmitz, Jr. 
Ingrid Grubb 
Alice Schmitz 

Also present were: 

Rich Hans 
William Capko 
Stefan Mathes 
Ann Marie Cogniglio 
Numerous residents 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Chairman 
Vice Chairman 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

District Manager 
District Counsel 
District Engineer 
POA 

Roll Call 
Mr. Hans called the meeting to order and called the roll. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUISNESS Approval of the Minutes of the 
April 2, 2019 Meeting 

Mr. Hans: Item 2 is our minutes from our April 2, 2019 meeting. If anyone has any 

comments on those minutes or corrections, we will take those, if not a motion approving the 

minutes would be in order. 

On MOTION by Ms. Grubb seconded by Mr. Zemola with all in 
favor the minutes of the April 2, 2019 meeting were approved. 
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THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Adopt the Fiscal 
Year 2020 Budget 

A. Motion to Open the Public Hearing 
Mr. Hans: Item 3 is the public hearing to adopt the fiscal year 2020 budget. This 

meeting was advertised for that purpose. It was set by resolution at our last meeting where 

we had approved a proposed budget. Today we are here for the purposes of adopting a 

final version of that budget. The first thing we need is a motion to open our public hearing 

On MOTION by Ms. Grubb seconded by Ms. Schmitz with all in 
favor the public hearing was opened. 

B. Public Comment and Discussion 
Mr. Hans: Public comment and discussion. I did pass out copies of the budget to 

everybody. This is the same version that we looked at when the budget was proposed over 

60 days ago at our last meeting. There are very few changes to the budget. We discussed 

the budget at the last meeting as well. The result is there is no additional assessments, 

increased assessments on anybody's property. The level of assessments is the same 

assessment that we have had for the last five or six years. If anybody has any comments 

we can take those. Not hearing any, does the Board have any questions? Then we will 

just move onto Resolution #2019-04 Annual Appropriation Resolution. 

C. Consideration of Resolution #2019-04 Annual Appropriation Resolution 
Mr. Hans: By adoption, this resolution you actually adopt this form of the budget that 

is in your packet. A motion approving Resolution #2019-04 would be in order. 

On MOTION by Mr. Schmitz seconded by Ms. Grubb with all in 
favor Resolution #2019-04 the Annual Appropriation Resolution 
was approved. 

D. Consideration of Resolution #2019-05 Levy of Non Ad Valorem 
Assessments 

Mr. Hans: Behind that resolution is a second Resolution #2019-05 which actually 

levies the assessment on the properties that we are going to collect on the tax roll. That is 

what that resolution does. Attached to that Resolution is an assessment roll. It is the 
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properties with the same per unit amount that we have been seeing in the past, $333.38 for 

the O&M. A motion approving that resolution would be in order. 

On MOTION by Ms. Schmitz seconded by Mr. Zemola with all in 
favor, Resolution #2019-05 Levy of Non Ad Valorem 
Assessments was approved. 

E. Motion to Close the Public Hearing 
Mr. Hans: Then a motion closing our public hearing would be in order. 

On MOTION by Ms. Grubb seconded by Mr. Schmitz with all in 
favor the public hearing was closed. 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion 
Restoration 

on Lake Bank 

Mr. Hans: We have the discussion of Lake Bank restoration. That is kind of just a 

general lake situation. I think our engineer can give us an update on the latest if there is 

any latest news. 

Mr. Mathes: We have done some preliminary investigations especially in some areas 

that have eroded to the point now that I do believe that they could use some restoration. 

When we originally did the project, we did a little over half and that was about ten years ago. 

We refurbished somewhere about 3,800 linear feet of lake bank. It was an average cost of 

about $32 a linear foot to do that using the geotube. What we have remaining is areas that 

haven't been touched are somewhere in the neighborhood about 5,600 linear feet. In my 

estimation, my quick review we don't have half of that that needs to be taken care of. I would 

say about 50% of that could use restoration whether it is in the form of geotube or some 

other newer methodology that can be done. If you take 50% of that, it is about 2,900 linear 

feet. I took that number from 10 years ago, averaged it out and it's about $38 a linear foot 

for the different options that we had. Some of it was not desirable which would be the riprap 

at the base, trying to solidify it. That is just not esthetically very pleasing. We average about 

$38 a foot. If you take 2,900 linear feet at $38 a foot you are somewhere around $110,000 

to do what I believe would be the worst case scenario of lank bank restoration in your series 

of operations. I also know that you are getting some areas on the existing geo-tubes that 

are starting to flatten out. Some of that might have to do with sun exposure and on UV rays 
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on the plastic itself. I have spoken with a couple of people who are very familiar with these 

types of applications and I have talked to one of those into some time in the next two weeks 

coming out and doing an inspection of the entire lake system to get his opinion. A second 

opinion is always good to have. I will get that done. That is my quick update on what I have 

done with the lake banks. Like I said we do have some areas that have quite a significant 

drop off and really should be looked at and taken care of fairly soon. 

Mr. Schmitz: How much would that be as an imposition of each house? 

Mr. Mathes: We really didn't do by owner last time. What we did was we established 

a fund to start working around the lakes. The worst case what I see is you have in your 

budget, you have $162,000 right now in your reserve funds for lank bank restoration. If you 

have on the high end of 50% of the banks that need to be done, I am assuming somewhere 

between $100,000 I $110,000 out of that fund would need to be expended. 

Ms. Schmitz: A neighbor complained to me about the house next door to her and it 

has a lot of damage. It looks like somebody is poking holes in it. 

Mr. Mathes: In the tube? 

Ms. Schmitz: Yes. 

Mr. Mathes: I heard that and I have asked some experts with tubes as to what would 

cause that. My professional accomplice Ed Weinberg and I need to take a look at that, that 

doesn't make sense. So that is why I asked him if he wouldn't mind coming out with me and 

taking a look at what may be causing the issues on the tu.bes. 

Ms. Schmitz: Good thank you. 

Mr. Zemola: Did you ever find somebody that can restore the tubing? 

Mr. Mathes: Not yet. After I meet with Ed we will see if we can't brainstorm some 

people that could. I have not been able to get a hold of Antinori who is the company that 

put it in. The phone numbers I have don't seem to work. I know Rich you may have tried 

once or twice too. We will have to find somebody else that does the tube but the tube is 

done by more than just the people that put it in. 

Mr. Zemola: Alice and I took a tour around the lake and we had identified pretty close 

to 27 different areas around that lake that the tube has collapsed. Some of them were 

between two foot and 20 yards. I do agree that something has to be done about it. I think 

we can eventually get something passed where we can continue on this. I don't know if we 

have to do anything now, do we? 
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Mr. Hans: No, I think the engineer has direction just to look into companies and what 

is out there to get some pricing and recommendations. 

Mr. Mathes: Should I move forward with putting a plan together for storing the areas 

that don't have the tube in my opinion that need to be corrected? 

Mr. Hans: Yes. 

Mr. Mathes: It will take me a couple of months to put a set of plans together to give 

you some ammunition of making a decision of what kind of restoration you want to do 

whether it is tube or whether it is moving fill from one part of the lake or another part. We 

know that is a five to seven remedy. If it erodes away, now it is going to erode away again 

because it is the size of the lake and the wind action on the waves constantly beating at your 

shore. The tube was intended to stop that from happening and it has but it has collapsed in 

some areas. There may be other products out there that I can bring back to you and give 

you an idea of the price. We can take a look at maybe a newer method of restoring the lake. 

Mr. Zemola: Was there any type of warranty on that? 

Mr. Mathes: Yes, there was a one year warranty. A one or a two. I will look back 

through the documents. 

Mr. Zemola: It is too late now. 

Mr. Mathes: For sure not a nine or ten year warranty. 

Mr. Zemola: If we could move that little slide area between the two banks from the 

east side of the bank and the west side of the bank, clear that area out, that would fill up 

some of those areas instead of taking it from the middle of the lake or putting that stuff in the 

middle of the lake, put it on the sides. 

Mr. Mathes: If you want to get into that discussion, I have done more research as of 

the last meeting with respect to the shoulder areas. 

Mr. Hans: Why don't we just move into the engineer's report? 

Mr. Mathes: At the last meeting we surveyed it and put a map together on those 

areas that are shallower than the standard lake depth. We took a look at where that material 

could be moved and some of the costs associated with moving the material. I had the ability 

to reach out to a couple of contractors who do specialize in that. One of them out of 

Pompano and the other one out of this area. There is a couple of different ways of doing to 

it. The dredging is more expensive than actual hydraulic pumping. We now have a little 

Creekside device about $25 per cubic yard. It is a hydraulic pump, the shoulder areas to 
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deep areas. Whether or not we can apply to that pumping to the lake bank I am not sure. 

We will have to do a little more research to see if that is feasible. Last time I reported to you 

between $40 and $75, now I am pretty comfortable that budget of $25 a cubic yard would 

be something that you can count on being the price. At 11,500 cubic yards to move you are 

talking about $100,000. If we take that and we work it into a lank bank restoration project 

where we take the fill needed to restore the banks and move the rest, we have some savings 

that could be realized if we combine both projects into one. 

Mr. Zemola: Sounds good. 

Mr. Mathes: The flap gate. I went out there with the contractor and what we are going 

to do is he promised me by next Wednesday he will have a stainless steel chain for the 

clevis and he will either mount a post or some kind of device that we can clevis the chain to 

so that it is not on top and out of the water and is easy accessible. He will see once he puts 

that on how easy it is or how difficult it is to move that flap gate. There was another option 

that we threw out and that was like, you know, like you have the wench of a boat, that fits 

on a boat trailer, to put something like that on top of it and you put the chain to it so you can 

crack up if you needed to. The problem is those things rust out over time and it is not 

something that unless I really feel the need to do something like that right now. We will see 

how the chain works. 

Mr. Zemola: What about just putting like a five foot pole, weld it to the thing so when 

you have a lever you could just lift it up like that. 

Mr. Mathes: He is going to try different options. He was thinking about trying to put 

a post right next to the pipe rather than having to weld on top of the pipe. He is going to 

come back and see what works and then we will go from there. 

Mr. Zemola: I tried to take a picture of the area in front of the pipe. I couldn't there 

was too much silt, there's sand in front of it and I couldn't get it open at all. 

Mr. Mathes: Did you see any rocks or anything like that in front it? 

Mr. Zemola: I didn't see any rocks. I couldn't see anything in there. It would be good 

to have something to check it to make sure it is open before the storms hit. One other thing 

is, about the drain pipe that is in the lake that is still up in the air like this. My feeling is that 

since it is a ridged pipe it may be separated from the cement dam area. 

Mr. Mathes: My contractor went out and tried to bring it back down and what has 

happened was there is actually a seam. There is a pipe that comes and then that is the 
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extension of the new pipe that was put on and that seam is cocked up and unfortunately, 

right now we have enough sand built up underneath it we would have to get some kind of 

dredge to be able to get the sand out from under it. Unless you directly tell the contractor 

he has got to do something to fix it, my recommendation is when we dredge and fix the canal 

banks we will be able to move the dirt out of there and settle the pipe back down into place. 

Mr. Zemola: Ok. Are we going to have a motion to get that fixed? 

Ms. Grubb: A motion to what? 

Mr. Zemola: A motion to get the pipe fixed that is in the lake. The one that is sticking 

up lowered down. 

Mr. Hans: Just for clarification doing it now or waiting till we get the dredging and 

doing to then? 

Mr. Zemola: What do you think would be better? 

Mr. Mathes: The way Ray explained it to me is the sand that has settled in underneath 

it was the entire length of the pipe and moving that out of the way and pushing it down is 

going to be a hard task. It is going to be difficult to do. If we do it while we are dredging it 

and while we are taking care of the lake banks, it should be something very easily taken 

care of by a contractor. 

Mr. Zemola: Ok then we will wait on that. 

Mr. Mathes: He appreciates that very much. 

Ms. Grubb: I have a question. Did we ever get the samples of the lake? 

Mr. Mathes: No ma'am I have not seen any samples. 

Ms. Grubb: Didn't we direct Wetlands to do that at our last meeting? 

Mr. Mathes: I believe you did. 

Mr. Hans: There was an email because you are looking for the samples. I emailed 

Wetlands again yesterday or the day before and there was confusion on their part. I don't 

know exactly what the confusion was but he said he will be out in the next week or so after 

the holiday probably to take the samples. They send it out to a lab and it will be two weeks 

after that before we get it back. It is in progress but the ball was dropped somewhere along 

the line. They were authorized. He was here last meeting. 

Ms. Grubb: That is kind of the nature of the beast. We authorize people to do things 

and that was three months ago and now we are here at our meeting and we don't have any 

information from them. Now we have to wait again. 
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Mr. Mathes: My two cents is that he is not going to come up with anything that would 

stop us from dredging the lake. The contractors I spoke with indicated that they would 

implement silk protection. In other words, they all think that the first couple of inches may 

be a silky type material that settled out and that is really something that you need to protect 

against but the sand underneath is very good and clean. I noticed that from what they use 

so none of them were really particularly concerned with what is in that silk. It is easier to 

move the sand underneath and we will deal with the silk on a case by case basis. Unless 

they come back with some very strange things in the testing of that material, I don't think it 
I 

is going to prohibit us from doing whatever program we decide to go with. 

Ms. Grubb: I understand what you are saying, it just kind of bothers me that we are 

in this waiting game a lot and we shouldn't be. 

Mr. Hans: Anything else under engineer's report? 

Mr. Mathes: No sir. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 
Mr. Capko: I am pleased to report that since the last meeting three months ago Rich 

as not gotten the District in any trouble. 

B. Engineer 
C. Manager 

1) Number of Registered Voters in the District - 803 
2) Consideration of Proposed Fiscal Year 202 Meeting Schedule 
3) Discussion of Financial Disclosure Report from Commission on Ethics 
4) Agreement with County/Sheriff for Traffic Control 

Mr. Hans: Under managers' report we have to report the number of registered voters 

each year. That is 803. That is because you transitioned into a general election which has 

happened a long time ago but we just need to report it each year by Statute. Item #2 under 

my report is consideration of the fiscal year 2020 meeting schedule. It is going to be similar 

to where we are at now. It is the first Tuesday of November, February, April and July. If that 

is a good with everybody a motion authorizing staff to advertise the meeting schedule. 

On MOTION by Mr. Schmitz seconded by Ms. Grubb with all in 
favor accepting the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting 
Schedule was approved. 
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Mr. Hans: You have your financial disclosure reports. It looks like Alice and Hank 

need for file your Form 1, your financial disclosure reports. You need to file them with the 

Supervisor of Elections. You should have received them in the mail about a month ago. 

They need to get back to the Supervisor. I have blank ones I can give you. 

Ms. Schmitz: Ok. 

Mr. Hans: Fill them out and return them. You want to get them in because they give 

you a grace period but then they start fining for not filing those. Everybody else has filed 

their forms. After the meeting I will give you the forms Alice. Not on the agenda but just to 

bring up the agreement with the County and the Sheriff's office for the traffic control that 

actually is approved everywhere. They are just waiting for signatures. The letter came back 

from the Sheriff's office to the County. Jake Ensor is following that through and in the next 

couple of days I would imagine that we will have the agreement signed and back so you can 

move forward with that. 

Mr. Simeon: I know I am getting old but I can't hear one word that you are saying, 

anybody, and I know I don't need hearing aids yet but maybe next year. I can't hear you. 

Can't you guys talk up a little bit? Please. 

Mr. Hans: We will try. That is all I have to report. 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 
A. Approval of Check Register 
B. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 
Mr. Hans: Financial reports. You have your check register and your balance sheet 

and income statement. If there are any comments on those, if not a motion approving those 

would be in order. 

On MOTION by Ms. Grubb seconded by Mr. Schmitz with all in 
favor the check register, balance sheet and income statement 
were approved. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and 
Audience Comments 

Mr. Hans: Any comments or requests from our Supervisors? 
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Mr. Zemola: I was wondering if there was any update about the clearing of the area 

in back of the houses. 

Ms. Cogniglio: The Board of Directors wanted to hear what the rest of the COD Board 

wanted. Do they agree with Al that the Association should go back and clear that 

overgrowth? 

Mr. Schmitz: Yes. 

Ms. Schmitz: How big an area is it? 

Mr. Zemola: All I am talking about is the six to ten foot area in back of the lots. It is 

supposed to be a cleared area. 

Ms. Grubb: Are you talking about the preserve area? 

Mr. Zemola: No in back of the houses there is about a six foot area. They have a 115 

foot area. There is another six foot before you get to the preserve, six to ten foot area. That 

should be cleared out. 

street. 

Ms. Cogniglio: Well Jose did do some. I thought you meant the house across the 

Mr. Zemola: Well that area too. That is within that area. 

Ms. Cogniglio: Well that is what the Board wanted to hear. 

Mr. Zemola: That is also in your covenants. That is under landscaping of easements. 

In addition to the easements, no structure, planting or other material may be placed or 

permitted to remain within these easements that will interfere with the vehicle traffic for 

maintenance of utilities. That is part of the maintenance easement. It should be cleared 

out. It is in Article 9 Section 5. 

Ms. Cogniglio: Al brought to my attention a house across the street who had planted 

within the COD property. I sent a letter to that homeowner. He reported back to me that he 

cleared what he planted. He said that everything else back there was there when he 

purchased the house. The Board of Directors did not at that time direct me to have 

somebody go in there and clear out. These are large cabbage palms now. They wanted to 

hear what the rest of the COD Board wished to be done. Do they agree with Al that we 

should go in there? 

Mr. DiSisto: That hasn't to do with the maintenance we are supposed to do. They 

have nothing to say. It says in our covenants that whole thing has to be maintained. You 
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are going to have to go with machinery. You cannot have the growth of the preserve into 

that six foot easement. 

Ms. Cogniglio: There is nothing in the easement but those large cabbage palms. 

Mr. DiSisto: If they are in the six foot easement they need to be removed. The COD 

has nothing to say. 

that. 

Mr. Grubb: At whose cost? 

Ms. Cogniglio: It would be the Association's. 

Mr. DiSisto: It is in our bylaws. 

Ms. Grubb: The HOA would have to pay to have those trees removed. 

Mr. DiSisto: Yes, and if we wait for them to remove, they grow bigger. 

Ms. Cogniglio: They are already big. 

Mr. DiSisto: Yes, because for 15 years we never maintained it. 

Ms. Grubb: So, do we go around and look at everybody's back yards that faces. 

Ms. Cogniglio: I did a portion. Jose did cut back a couple weeks ago. He just did 

Mr. DiSisto: There is machinery, a big lawn mower. 

Ms. Cogniglio: This is a chain saw. This is not brush. 

Ms. Grubb: I guess my question would be the COD is now faced with having to go in 

or the HOA having to go in and take these trees out when it should have been addressed 

when those trees were first put there. How far do you go back? 

Mr. DiSisto: Six foot. 

Ms. Grubb: I know but I mean in time. 

Mr. Zemola: It doesn't matter if it is on the COD property, it doesn't matter. 

Ms. Grubb: She is saying these trees are huge. 

Ms. Cogniglio: I am just reporting back from the Board. 

Mr. DiSisto: The machine I am talking about they are using it on 1-95 and Turnpike. 

They come in, it is a blade that just cuts six foot straight out. It is not that expensive. If you 

go in and cut three or four feet out of it. As a matter of fact, as the machine chops it you 

lose it and it stays down there. Once in a while every two or three years a tractor should go 

in and pass it right over so you have a clean cut. If you have big trees they have to be cut. 

Then you send our landscaper but that has to be done. 
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Mr. Tippman: I am not defending this particular Board and I am not attacking the 

COD but somewhere you need to have a way of communicating this other than put Ann 

Marie in the middle. You told Ann Marie to do something. She has told the Board it needs 

to be done. They said they want more information. 

Mr. Zemola: It is also in the covenants that they have to do this. I also had given 

everybody including you a note from the COD saying that nobody is supposed to be planting 

on that area or any COD or common area without the permission of the COD. 

Mr. DiSisto: Al you know that what happened is you need to be certified that you have 

read your bylaw 100% and you understand it. You need not to be told. You need to know 

yourself everything there is to know about your bylaws. You don't need to ask other people. 

You have a job to do, do it. If you don't want to do it then don't do it. I guarantee you those 

people over there and you know who guarantees that they read their bylaws, the property 

management. 

Mr. Tippman: It is not her responsibility. 

Mr. DiSisto: Property management sir. Listen you don't know, then don't say nothing. 

Don't tell me it is not her job. It is. 

Mr. Hans: Let's get back to the COD portion please. I think what Ann Marie is looking 

for is if the concensus of the Board, if the Board wants to make a motion that says let's have 

those trees removed, let's make that motion and the HOA will do it. So, if that is the desire 

of the Board. 

Mr. DiSisto: We need to have that conversation. We need to have to where we know 

what we have to do. Obviously, we are fifteen years here and we still don't know who does 

what. 

Mr. Hans: We will take that step right after we finish this motion. What is the address? 

Ms. Cogniglio: I think is it 5665 Spanish River Road. I can email Rich if I am wrong. 

On MOTION by Ms. Grubb seconded by Mr. Zemola with all in 
favor authorizing the HOA to remove the trees at 5665 Spanish 
River Road was approved. 

Ms. Maria DiSisto: In the January meeting it was approved to take those pipes on 

the front lake and nothing has been done. They were supposed to find out the price. That 

was approved at the January meeting. They are still there. We come here for meetings but 
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nothing gets done. Go back to the January meeting. Those pipes were to be gone. They 

are still there. 

Mr. DiSisto: If I may explain. There are two cast iron pipes that come out of the tank. 

They are not, but that is what they appear to be. 

Mr. Zemola: You are talking about over in the front along the little north lake? 

Mr. DiSisto: Exactly. Those two pipes, it would appear that it is the overflow of the 

bank, but it is not. 

Mr. Zemola: It is those pipes Stef. The sprinkler system used to come out into the 

lake. They are still showing there. They are still out. They are not doing anything. It looks 

terrible. 

Mr. DiSisto: It would appear that it is overflow of the septic. 

Mr. Zemola: It is not. It's where the sprinkler used to be. 

Mr. Mathes: I know what pipes you are talking about. I saw them today. I don't 

remember anybody requesting me to take care of it. I am sorry I don't remember. 

Ms. DiSisto: It was approved in the January meeting. Go back to the January meeting 

and you will see it. 

Mr. Mathes: Yes ma'am. 

Mr. Hans: February 5th was the meeting but we will look at it and we will address it. 

In this whole conversation I guess can we ask the HOA to do a survey and see how many 

other homes are in the same situation with the trees or do you want to wait and see. I don't 

want to create extra headaches for the HOA but I don't want these people come back and 

say you are making me take out my trees and my neighbor has trees in there. 

Ms. Grubb: We need to know. 

Mr. Hans: I guess if someone wants to make some sort of motion along the lines of 

these other situations then the HOA doesn't have to come back to the COD, they have the 

authority to take them out if you are in agreement with them taking them out. 

Mr. DiSisto: You are bypassing on the bylaws. 

Mr. Hans: I am not bypassing. They want consensus of taking them out. 

Mr. DiSisto: Our bylaws say that the Association is responsible for that. 

Mr. Hans: They came back and asked us a question. We could have said read the 

bylaws. 

Ms. Cogniglio: Just on that particular lot, not the whole thing. 
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Mr. Hans: If you need other consensus we can do it. 

Ms. Grubb: We don't have anybody here from the Board today? 

Ms. Cogniglio: No. 

Mr. Hans: Any other Supervisors comments or requests? 

Mr. Simeon: Are you under number 7? 

Mr. Hans: Yes. We are under Supervisor Requests. 

Mr. Simeon: I definitely have something. I am going to sell my house sooner or later 

and it probably looks like it is going to be sooner. I live on the north canal. On the north 

canal I called Ann Marie. She wrote out a report. I didn't hear back so I called her and she 

said that is not her duty, that it has to come from somebody else. Then I called Alice and 

she got somebody which was you to come over and look at my situation which has gotten 

worse. 

Mr. Zemola: Yes, I did come over and look at it. 

Mr. Simeon: Then I got the word back that what the problem is, is between my 

neighbor and myself. I am at 5853 Sunberry Circle over here. Right at the corner, both 

corners, Al, there is a new hole on my right side. I have a huge hole that is going into my 

yard. I went on the side of my house and there is dirt mysteriously gone. I then looked over 

on my other side and I went, my God the dirt must be coming out the bottom. If I sell my 

home, I am not a crook and I am going to tell them. They won't buy it like it is. I am going 

to tell them what is there and they are going to say you can't do anything until you fix it. 

Mr. Zemola: I have seen that and that looks as though it is a hole from the drain from 

between the houses where it comes down, the slope. 

Mr. Simeon: I looked at where the sprinklers were and that is not it. What I am trying 

to ask you is this. Somebody came back and said throw some dirt on it. What do you mean 

throw dirt on it? You have to put concrete in there or something to stop it. All the dirt is 

coming out from my yard and my neighbor's yard into the north canal. The north canal 

where it is at right now has never been this low. I look over and the sand there is no water. 

Plus, the garbage that is left over. Nobody ever bothers to clean up the garbage. I do but 

nobody else does. I get out there with a rake to try and make it look better. What bothers 

me is what you said. If you are responsible to do something in this Association, you should 

do it. We shouldn't have to ask you a second time, a third time, a fourth time, it needs to be 

done. Now this is your responsibility and I want it fixed. That is the only way I am going to 
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sell my home. I don't want to sell. I love this community but I am not going to be around 

that much longer. The house has to sell. I am not going to let the house sit there vacant and 

back to the bank because ten years from now you still haven't fixed it. Somebody needs to 

dig all that sand out of there. All that sand and dirt has to be dug up and put somewhere 

else. Then we need to concrete those holes and get it done today, not tomorrow. You know 

I am a teacher. I am responsible by the end of the year, my kids have to take a test. If they 

don't pass that test, I have failed. I am one of the few teachers, I retired as of this year, but 

I am one of the few that still got bonuses because my kids learned. It is the same thing here, 

we are all family. We have this wonderful community that we love and the one thing that 

makes me so angry is if I place a call and nothing happens, so I place a second call. Nothing 

happens. I have to place a third call. If I did that with my kids, sorry we will learn that next 

year. Is that what you want? 

Mr. Zemola: Well I came over to your house and I looked at it. Your call claimed that 

it was a sinkhole. It is not a sinkhole. It is just a little erosion that you have two types of dirt. 

One is very compact and underneath it was sand and the sand came out underneath the 

hard dirt. That is all. The other one just appeared because of the rain coming down between 

the two houses and it flowed down into the lake where it is sandy now and made a small 

little hole about this big. That is all. 

Mr. Simeon: It has to be fixed. We can't have this continue. 

Mr. Zemola: It is happening all around the lake right now. 

Mr. Simeon: You can put some concrete in there to stop it. You come in this 

community and I tell people don't look to the right or the left, just stay right ahead. I am 

ashamed that it looks like that. 

Mr. Zemola: There is nothing you can do about it because the lake is low. 

Mr. Simeon: At least, at the very least I would have planted some grass seed. I would 

have cleaned it up, raked it out, something. You know what, I guess we have one 

maintenance person who works here. If you need five, hire them to get this stuff done. 

Mr. DiSisto: I understand, I am going through the same thing. We were talking about 

fixing the banks and stuff like that. If we do not fix the level of the water of the lake you are 

going to have a problem over and over and every few years you are going to spend $100,000 

to redo the banks. The way this was designed was that we dig the hole, we put the pumps 

for the sprinklers into the lake and the County was going to give us the water back. Now we 
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are taking the water but the County is not bringing the water back. I understand what you 

are all saying, it is Florida. It is not Florida, I understand exactly what he is talking about. 

The level of the water is not because it is hot, it is because we are taking it away with the 

sprinklers. The engineer knows very well the design of this lake. We have to put artesian, 

a big well and that is what we have to do. This cannot continue because you know what, he 

is right. The thing of it is you have all these problems with the banks, it is going to continue. 

We spent $100,000 last time. We are spending $100,000, that is $200,000 and in a few 

years we are going to have to redo them because the water goes up and down. Like in his 

situation that is where the water comes out and it just drags the sand right down into the 

lake. You cannot have that. You have to resolve the level of the lake. You take the water 

out. You have to replenish it. 

Mr. Simeon: Is the lake higher than the canals? 

Mr. DiSisto: No. 

Mr. Zemola: There is pipes inbetween the north lake, the south lake and the main 

lake. If you know anything about the physics you know that the pipes control the level. It is 

not going to change. They all flow and they are all the same height. 

Mr. DiSisto: I know the physics Al. You have a percolation test. You put the water 

on top of the dirt and the water comes down. In this situation you have muck. We want to 

go into that discussion I don't think so. You have muck all the way down. The water does 

not come back into the lake. 

Mr. Simeon: That aside it takes common sense to look at what is going on and look 

at it as a whole and what are you going to see then. You are going to see sand which is 

supposed to be water because the sand has dripped down over the years. 

I have been here twelve years, I have never seen it like this. I am telling you something is 

happening under my house. Something is happening and I have at least $260,000 in that 

house. I am never going to recover it. I just don't think it is fair that if I am paying these 

taxes and if there is a problem and there is, 10 or 15 homes that have to live with that, that 

is not fair. 

Mr. Zemola: Ok. 

Mr. Simeon: Now if I have to go out and mix concrete myself which I will have a heart 

attack and die but I am so angry I would do that. It pisses me off and it has been six months 

since I reported it. Six months and whoever the engineer is, I guess it is you don't call back. 
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I am not that important to anyone. Well I feel like I am very important to someone. I am 

important to myself. I want it fixed. I don't care if you don't take concrete and fix those holes 

I am going to do it myself and I want to sue you for everything you got. I will just do it. 

Ms. Fodor: Ok I don't want to interrupt anybody but I have been standing here for a 

while and I have to say something. I have been here for fifteen years and out of the fifteen 

years I have called at least 30 times. The lake behind my house, if you want to sit back there 

you have such allergies you can't even get out of there. I start wheezing like a cat because 

of the allergies. Yesterday they came to spray. Since January nobody came to spray all 

the algae that has grown on top of there. Besides that, it is so low. Everything comes up. 

We have been waiting two or three years to have this problem fixed. They fixed one piece. 

They fixed all this area back here, two years later the back is still the same. Now they fix in 

front of Fred's house. They cut it off. The rest looks like shit. Pardon my French because it 

is awful to see. People come over and say oh my God look at your lake. I have $350,000 

invested in my house. I don't plan to leave. I don't plan to move. I plan to fight this battle 

until this gets taken care of. I have been waiting long enough for this problem to be taken 

care of. It has been reported thousands of times. Nothing has been done. They come and 

look. Before they used to come and rake. They push sand and get the weeds that grows 

in. Now they don't even do that. Yesterday they came and they sprayed. I can do that from 

my backyard but I cannot do the whole circle. I want somebody that has the notion and the 

knowledge to walk around the lake and look what is there. Then tell me if that is right. This 

problem is not acceptable to me and a lot of my neighbors because we paid $35,000 extra 

a lot to live on the lake which was a lake, now it is a disgrace. If somebody doesn't take 

care of this, it is going to be a big problem. I don't want to go to a lawyer. I don't want to get 

any problems. I am a neighbor and I like to be a good neighbor to everybody but this is not 

right because it leaves the value out of our property. People are selling because they are 

getting disgusted the way things are happening. I am not going to be one of those. Thank 

you for listening to me. I hope that it puts some thoughts in some people's mind. 

Mr. DiSisto: The agreement that the COD has with the Association, can anybody get 

a copy because when I hear talking on this and that, it says specifically on the thing, it is the 

Associations job for the waterway, for everything that we have discussed here. It is not the 

CDD's. The COD does not have to go out and check. It is the Association. Can we get a 

copy of that? 
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Mr. Zemola: The years before the Association would go around and collect all that 

junk with rakes and stuff and put it on the banks and let it dry out and remove it. 

Mr. Hans: Fred I can email you the agreement. 

A resident: I have a quick question. Doesn't it say in our documents that there is not 

supposed to be any beaches? This whole lake is a beach now. 

Mr. Zemola: You can't do nothing about this because this is part of Florida. I hate to 

say this, people don't believe it, but in the summertime around the spring in Florida you 

usually don't have very much rain and the water level goes down. That is part of it and it 

creates those beaches. That is not the thing. The Association doesn't want you to have 

beaches, put beaches in back of your yard. 

A resident: Besides that though, what is the secondary plan when this lake looks like 

it is just a puddle in the middle of the lake? 

Mr. Zemola: The water table has gone down. Stef can even tell you that. All lakes 

around here have gone down. You have an 18 Yz foot water level at a normal but now it is 

less because the water table and the rain in South Florida has gone down. Even if you put 

water in there right now it is going to drain it right out through the water table and go to other 

areas. You water level is going to go down and show beaches there. It is going to look like 

beaches but it isn't a beach, it is just that the water level has gone down. 

A resident: If that situation occurs, and the water table stays low, and doesn't come 

up and bring the water up in the lake, what is the plan to address this hole? 

Mr. Zemola: Nature will take care of itself, it always has for many years. 

Mr. DiSisto: We have a shop, we can discuss back and forth in Kings Highway we 

had the same problem. I went to the Association, got an attorney, and got the South Water 

Management to come out. They put a valve that comes up and you know what, that lake 

over there is full. So, what you are saying is true. Your water comes in, comes down and 

I am telling you if you have two big pumps two feet below the water table, you can see that 

the water is trying to come down but as soon as it comes down the pumps starts again and 

pumps it out again. 

Mr. Zemola: We have three wells here in our community. 

Mr. DiSisto: But we never use those three wells. 

Mr. Zemola: They tried that and I think you were on the Board when they did it. They 

put it on for well over two months. They had those wells pumping water into the lake. In the 
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evening the water would go down again because of the water table. We were just wasting 

money. 

Mr. DiSisto: No you're two feet below the water table, the lake is two feet below the 

water table. 

Mr. Zemola: Probably even more than that. 

A resident: How much do those pumps, how much did they waste because we are 

taking water for the sprinklers. 

Mr. DiSisto: We need to know today what we are going to do with it because it is not 

like you can go around, you can go next door, the water is down. 

Mr. Zemola: I have been back there, I can see the water level is down over there in 

those lakes. 

Mr. DiSisto: It is evaporation. It is not sprinklers taking the water out so what we need 

to know today if all of you are going to stick with we are not going to do a thing about the 

water level, then we need to know then we need to take legal action. 

Mr. Zemola: You may have a rain storm tomorrow that will fill the lake. 

Mr. DiSisto: You guys are talking about opening up the flap? What are you going to 

do with the flap? 

is all. 

Mr. Zemola: No that was just to test. 

Mr. DiSisto: It to be opened when? 

Mr. Mathes: If it ever needs to be opened. We are not planning on opening it. 

Mr. Zemola: That was just to test it to make sure nothing is in front of the flap. That 

Mr. DiSisto: That needs to be closed all the time. 

Mr. Zemola: We want to make sure that there is no rocks or no silk in front of the flap. 

Mr. DiSisto: I understand, I agree. 

Mr. Zemola: Right now, I tried to pull it up and I couldn't pull it up. There may be 

rocks or sand in front of it. We want a lever or something to make sure that it can go up and 

down. That is all that was about. 

Mr. DiSisto: Anyway, this water here when it was designed it was designed to be 

replenished. 

Mr. Zemola: That was because of the used water from the other side from the Pine 

whatever it was across the street. They never did that. 
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Ms. DiSisto: That is why the pumps were put in. 

Mr. DiSisto: The first couple of years the pumps were on all the time. 

Ms. DiSisto: All the sudden they shut off the pumps. There were three pumps. They 

were on all the time. They were never off and we never had this problem. 

Mr. DiSisto: I would be very happy if my lake, the lake over there where we are looks 

like this. That tells you had badly we are. 

Ms. Fodor: You should go to the back of my house. You can't, there is mosquitos. 

The only thing we have is that soot and that's full of garbage and everything. These people 

that we have, the Wetlands whoever, they need to be fired because they don't do their job. 

Whatever money you pay them we just throw it in the garbage. Give it to the poor. Since 

January they came yesterday to spray because today we have a meeting. Since January, 

six months. You have to be kidding. Nobody watches when they come. We have the 

management here that doesn't watch for anything. She wants to hear this and she makes 

noises when we complain. We are tired of complaining. The same way that we complain 

about the pool. The pool is green inside. Nobody looked. Now it is two days that it is closed. 

How did it get green like that? The guy comes to clean, nobody watches that he didn't do 

the good job. It is disgusting. We need new management here. We are going to get 

together and we are going to get things done. It is sorry that we have to sue our neighbors 

but it is going to happen. 

Mr. DiSisto: We are going to need to know and we can go around and see how the 

other lakes are and everything. This cannot be. 

Mr. Zemola: Every year we do the same thing. It is just part of Florida. 

Mr. DiSisto: It is not Florida. I am ok with the two feet of evaporation. That is not 

what we are talking about. We are talking about the sprinklers taking the water out. Two 

pumps over here taking thousands and millions of gallons every two days. That water 

doesn't replenish in time to have a safe level. You understand. I am ok with it, the water 

comes, it rains and like I say behind our place over there in Kings Highway Ocean Park it is 

level because the water comes, the evaporation goes and the rain and everything it is 

beautiful. 

Mr. Zemola: So, what you are trying to request is that the three wells we put on to 

replenish the water from the sprinkler system, that would have to go through the HOA to do 

that. 
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Mr. DiSisto: How much are we taking out? You have the engineers, they can figure 

it out. How much water you take out and how much water you are replenishing? 

Mr. Hans: Going back years ago when you, Healy used to come to these meetings 

and he was an advocate of turning those pumps back on I believe. I believe there was some 

type of study that was done back then where South Florida only lets us pump out so many 

gallons per day or whatever it is versus how many gallons we are pumping out. I thought 

that either the HOA sponsored it or maybe the COD did. I don't remember the COD actually 

getting the report but I thought a study was done on that. I will check my records and Ann 

Marie if you could see if you could find anything. 

Mr. DiSisto: Why don't I get the South Florida Management up here. 

Mr. Hans: We have a permit from South Florida Water Management District. I think 

it would be good if we could get them out here and get recommendations from them what 

we can do, what they would recommend. 

Mr. DiSisto: I will call him and tell him to come over. 

Mr. Hans: Let us know and I am sure Stef will come. I will come up to the meeting. 

Let's set that up and that will be a start. 

Mr. Simeon: Something I noticed about the HOA from twelve years ago. It is not that 

the HOA isn't trying and they are not gun-ho, but you know it is like everything. For instance, 

I was told by Fred that I could not put on a door that has been cut out. He told me that these 

people who are cutting their doors out and putting in glass, that they can't do that because 

it diminishes the strength of the door. I had to go spend almost $1,800 with one style to put 

into my home. I followed what they said I had to do. I just saw two new neighbors, they cut 

them out, they put them in. It is not fair. A second thing I was told by somebody that I had 

to go down to the courthouse and tell them with a map what tree I am going to cut down 

before it could be cut down. I make all that trouble. Go in and sign all the papers and pay 

whatever the fee is. It takes a couple of weeks. They come back and say ok you can cut 

that tree down. 

Mr. Hans: None of this is COD related. This Board can't help you with that. 

Mr. Simeon: I am just trying to say it is not just one thing. There is several. I think 

management has a problem. That is number one that we need to clear up. I don't think we 

should be playing favorites to get things done. When something is reported you should have 

the courtesy to call us and say it has been done. If we have these problems with the water 
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somebody on this Board should call and say David, we are happy to report we are going fo 

do this. Alice called me and said David try to come to this meeting because they are not 

listening. She had said that part that you are not listening. I don't know if this is a volunteer 

spot but I would think you are getting paid for this ..... 

Mr. Hans: No. 

Mr. Simeon: I want the engineer and the attorney, do I have to sue the Association to 

follow the bylaws? 

Mr. Hans: You are at the wrong place right now. 

Mr. DiSisto: You are right to a point. The COD has the obligation to make sure that 

the Association is doing what it is supposed to be doing. 

Mr. Hans: Just on COD property. We have nothing to do with the doors. 

Mr. DiSisto: And by the way 100% you are right what you said. They are all in 

violation. 

Mr. Zemola: Alright can we adjourn this meeting. 

Mr. Hans: Motion to adjourn by Al. 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

On MOTION by Mr. Zemola seconded by Ms. Grubb with all in 
favor the meeting was adjourned. 

Assistant Secretary/Secretary ChairmanNice Chairman 
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(561) 994-9299. (800) 299-4728 
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We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Portofino Shores Community 
Development District, St. Lucie County, Florida (the "District") for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. We will 
audit the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund, including the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Portofino Shores Community 
Development District for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. In addition, we will examine the District's 
compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415 Florida Statutes. This letter serves to renew our agreement and 
establish the terms and fee for the 2019 audit. 

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary 
information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District's basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply 
certain limited procedures to the District's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited 
procedures, but will not be audited: 

1. Management's discussion and analysis 
2. Budgetary comparison schedule 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in 
all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of 
the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the District and 
other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon 
completion of our audit of the District's financial statements. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion 
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of
matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the financial statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss 
the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have 
not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements 
and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on 
internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the 
report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's 
internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If 
during our audit we become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the 
terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 
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Examination Objective 

The objective of our examination is the expression of an opinion as to whether the District is in compliance with Florida 
Statute 218.415 in accordance with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Our examination will 
be conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants and will include tests of your records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express 
such an opinion. We will issue a written report upon completion of our examination of the District's compliance. The 
report will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of management, those 
charged with governance, and the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. 
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other
matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the District's compliance is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with 
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the examination or are unable to form or have not formed 
an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all representations 
contained therein. Further, management is responsible for compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 and will provide us 
with the information required for the examination. The accuracy and completeness of such information is also 
management's responsibility. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements and related 
notes in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These 
nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be 
conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibilities 
relating to the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required 
to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements 
and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their 
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. In addition, you will be required to make certain representations 
regarding compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in the management representation letter. Further, you agree to 
oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, who possesses 
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility 
for them. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and 
monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and 
regulations; and ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. 
Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting 
principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, 
(2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within 
the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to 
us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the 
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, 
to the financial statements taken as a whole. As part of our engagement, we may propose standard adjusting, or 
correcting journal entries to your financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding 
the nature of the proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees 
who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or 
others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial audits, attestation 
engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section 
of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are 
also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well 
as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 
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With regard to using the audit's report, you understand that you must obtain our prior written consent to reproduce or 
use our report in bond offering official statements or other documents. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, 
we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information 
in the electronic site with the original document. 

Audit Procedures-General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas 
to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government 
or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is 
subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because 
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and 
not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect 
on the financial statements. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and 
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other 
assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. 
We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for 
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about 
your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; 
and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures-Internal Controls 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the District and its environment, including internal control, sufficient 
to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of 
further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we 
consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to 
preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary 
to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance 
internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Audit Procedures-Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of the District's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
agreements, and grants, if applicable. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Audit Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected 
by us for testing. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Grau & Associates and constitutes confidential 
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will 
be made available upon request and in a timely manner to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal 
agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review 
of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. 
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If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Grau & Associates 
personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned 
parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including 
other governmental agencies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge that various documents 
reviewed or produced during the conduct of the audit may be public records under Florida law. The District agrees to 
notify Grau & Associates of any public record request it receives that involves audit documentation. 

Furthermore, Grau & Associates shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, comply 
with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and specifically shall: 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the services or work set forth in this 
Agreement; and 

b. Upon the request of the District's custodian of public records, provide the District with a copy of the requested 
records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed 
the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; and 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
completion of the Agreement if Grau & Associates does not transfer the records to the District; and 

d. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all public records in possession of the 
Auditor or keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service or work provided 
for in this Agreement. If the Auditor transfers all public records to the District upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Auditor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public disclosure requirements. If the Auditor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Auditor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District, upon request from the District's custodian of public records, in 
a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the District. 

Auditor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records relating to this Agreement must be made 
directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701 (3), Florida Statutes. If notified by the District of a public records 
request for records not in the possession of the District but in possession of the Auditor, the Auditor shall provide such 
records to the District or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time. Auditor acknowledges 
that should Auditor fail to provide the public records to the District within a reasonable time, Auditor may be subject to 
penalties pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes. 

IF GRAU & ASSOCIATES HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS CUSTODIAN AT: 

GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N NOB HILL ROAD 
SUNRISE, FL 33351 
TELEPHONE: 954-721-8681 

Our fee for these services will not exceed $3,600 for the September 30, 2019 audit, unless there is a change in activity 
by the District which results in additional audit work or if Bonds are issued. 

We will complete the audit within prescribed statutory deadlines, which requires the District to submit its annual audit 
to the Auditor General no later than nine (9) months after the end of the audited fiscal year, with the understanding that 
your employees will provide information needed to perform the audit on a timely basis. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date. 
If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) 
contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Invoices 
will be submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. In accordance with 
our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed 
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed 
to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be 
obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of 
termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that 
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will 
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate. 

This agreement may be renewed each year thereafter subject to the mutual agreement by both parties to all terms and 
fees. The fee for each annual renewal will be agreed upon separately. 
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We will provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any 
subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2016 peer review 
report accompanies this letter. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Portofino Shores Community Development District and believe this 
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. 
If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it 
to us. 

Very truly yours, 

Grau & Associates 

Antonio J. Grau 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Portofino Shores Community Development District. 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 
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Grau & Associates 
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ended June 30, 2016 which has been designed to meet the requirements of the quality control standards 

for an accounting and· auditing practice established by the AICP A and which was complied with during the year 
then ended to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of conforming with professional standards~ 
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Treasure Coast Sealcoating, LLC 
1212 SW 21 ave 
Boynton Beach1 FL 33426 
772-546-9118 
561-810-5908 Fax 

South Florida's premier Sealing and Striping 
Specialists 
of Commercial and Industrial Properties 

Since 2006 
Visit our web site for a list of our happy customers 
tcsealingllc@comcast.net 

PROPOSAL 

August 121 2019 

Potofino 
5720 Spanish River Road, Fort Pierce, 

Email:annmarie@WatsonRealtyCorp.com 
ATT:Annmarie Coniglio 

Seal coating: (50,000 sq ft) ............................................................. $4,500.00 
1. Pavement shall be thoroughly cleaned to remove all diit and debris. 
2. All heavy traffic areas will be primed including entrances and exits. Oil spots will be treated with oil spot remover. 
3. Apply "star seal supreme" fmtified coal tar emulsion which exceeds the Federal Government Specifications: 

RP-355E ASTM 05727 & 490. 
4. Silica sand will be added along with Star seal Flex a latex strengthening adhesive 

Line striping: ......................................................... _ ....................... Included 

1. Layout and re-stripe all parking lines. 
2. Paint all symbols and markings as it applies. 
3. Paint handicap areas 
4. Paint all hash marks 

AH work to be performed to specifications on letter provided to me 

PAYMENTS TO BE MADE AS FOLLOWS: Total: $4,500.00 
Half down and balance to be received upon completion of work. 

Respectfully submitted by Tl'easure Coast Sealing 

By: _______________ _ 
Note: This contract may be withdrawn by us if not accepted 
within reasonable days. There shall be a one year guarantee on the 
materials and all workmanship. Licensed and Insured 

any alteration or derivation from above specifications 
involving exh·a cos ls will be executed only upon written 

orders, and will become an extra charge over and above 
the estimate. I£ cars are left on lot, there will be a $250 fee 
per car for the return and sealing and/ or striping. 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL 
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized 
To do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 
Signature Date ____________ _ 



3526 SW DEGGELLER CT 
PALM CITY, FL. 34990 
(772) 219-0470 OFF (772) 220-4633 FAX 

Lic#MCP01361 

Name I Address 

Watson Association Management, LLC 
430 NW Lake Whitney Place 
Port St. Lucie, FL 34986 
Ann Marie-772-460-1660 

DESCRIPTION 

AREAS TO BE SEALED ARE THE CLUB HOUSE AND 
BOTH ENTRANCES 

MOVE ALL CAR STOPS TO CLEAN SEAL UNDER 
AND RESET- APPLY OIL SPOT PRIMER WHERE 
NEEDED - MACHINE BLOW AREA TO BE SEALED -
APPLY TWO COAT SPRAY OF SEALER WITH 3 - 5 
LBS. OF AGGREGATE PER GALLON. 
EXTRA SEALER APPLIED TO ENTRANCES AND 
TURNING P01NTS. 
TOPP-TUFF LATEX ADDITIVE INCLUDED INTO MIX 
DESIGN. 
FSA LATEX ADDITIVE INCLUDED INTO MIX 
DESIGN, 

Re-Stripe Existing Pavement Markings (Included) 

THIS PROJECT SHOULD TAKE nvo DAYS FOR 
SEALING. 
WE CAN SEAL HALF OF THE CLUB HOUSE AND 
HALF OF EACH ENTRANCE PER DAY. 

WE USE COAL TAR EMULSION PRODUCED BY 
SEALMASTER IN POMP ANO,FL. 

DATE 

SIGNATURE'-------------

REP 

OMQ 

QTY- SQ.FT.- FEET U/M 

6,101 SY 

1 LS 

Total: 

Estimate 

Email: duraseal@bellsouth.net 

www.duraseal .construction 

DATE ESTIMATE NO. 

8/6/2019 1908-2775 

Project 

Portifino Shores 

RATE Total 

5,890.00 

0.00 

$5,890.00 

IF AWARDED PLEASE SIGN & RETURN TO ENSURE TIMELY SCHEDULING (PRICES GOOD FOR 30 DAYS) 
Work cannot start without signed approval of this estimate. 

We also will need "Notice To Owner" information for our suppliers In the event that a Lien be placed on tl1e property for failure of payment. 
Items not listed on this estimate will only be done with a written change order and will be billed accordingly. 

There will be an upcharge of $1.75 per square foot per inch in depth for asphalt if the asphalt is deeper than estimated depth. 

Asphalt repairs - Car stops - Concrete work- Paving - Curbing - Sealcoating - Striping - Staining - Textures - Thermoplastic 
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9'"'1Uu.!. ~, !7H.C. 
Proposal and Contract 

9'"'.'U:Le ~, !7n.c. , a Florida S-Corporation company (TL, Inc.) agrees to perform the 
following services at the location listed below upon Portofino Shore Property Association, Inc. 
("customer") and execution of this contract. Job Info: Portofino Shores- 5720 Spanish River 
Rd., Ft. Pierce. 

Sealcoating at Clubhouse: 
Sealing is a two coat spray method using Star Seal Asphalt Sealer. All sealed surfaces 
will be cleaned of debris using a power broom & blower. Oil spot areas will be treated 
before application of sealer. All parking blocks will be removed prior to sealing and reset 
after striping. 

Pamted M arkings §t Clubhouse: Color Otv 
Stall Divider 4" White 100 LF 
18' Single Parking Striues 4" White 29 EA 
Handicap Stall with Access Aisle Blue 1 EA 
Handicap Stall without Access Aisle Blue 1 EA 
Large Arrows White 7 EA 
Crosswalk 12" White 96 LF 
Stop bar 24" White 26 LF 
Double Yellow 611 Yellow 25 LF 

Clubhouse Total: $2,450.00 

Sealcoating at Main Entry 
Sealing is a two coat spray method using Star Seal Asphalt Sealer. All sealed surfaces 
will be cleaned of debris using a power broom & blowet·. Oil spot areas will be treated 
before application of sealer. All parking blocks will be removed prior to sealing and reset 
after striping. 

Painted Markings ftt Main Entrv Color OiY 
Lane Divider 611 White 100 LF 

DOT Left Arrow White 2 EA 
Stop bar White 35 LF 
Skip (10-30) 6" White 70 LF 
Zoned Area 6" White 365 LF 
Edge Line 6" White 90 LF 
Double Yell ow 611 Yellow 210 LF 

Main Entry Total: $2,200.00 
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Sealcoating at Rear Exit I Entrance 

Sealing is a two coat spray method using Star Seal Asphalt Sealer. All sealed surfaces 
will be cleaned of debris using a power broom & blower. Oil spot areas will be treated 
before application of sealer. All parking blocks will be removed prior to sealing and reset 
after st.J.iping. 

p. d amte Markings !it Rear Exit I Entrance Color Otv 
Edire Line 6" Yellow 185 LP 
Lane Divider 611 White 225 LF 
Skio 611 Yellow 20 LF 
DOT Arrow Left White 2 EA 
Stoo bar 24" White 1 EA 
Zoned Area 611 White 107 LF 
Zoned Area 18" White 70 LF 
Double Yellow 611 Yellow 210 LF 
Gore 18" Yellow 40 LF 

Rear Exit/ Entrance Total: $2,275.00 

GRAND TOTAL: $6,925.00 
NOTES & CONDITIONS: 
-Job bid to be completed in one phase. 
-Proposal does not include the following: Night and Weekends, Permits and Fees, Removal of Markings 
and Theimoplastic Markings. 
-True Lines will not be held responsible for fines, fees or liabilities resulting from customer not choosing to 
pull the pennit option. 
-All irrigation must be off 12 hours prior to True Line's schedule dates(s) & remain off for the duration of 
the work. 
-All areas must be cleared of stored material, vehicles etc. prior to True lines arrival. A fee of $800 will be 
applied to invoice for noncompliance. 
-Landscape preparation to be completed prior to our arrive (by others) including, but not limited to: 
mowing, edging, shrub trimming etc. 
-A fee of$500 will be apf)lied to invoice for cancellation of work within 24 hours of agreed schedule date. 
-True Lines will not warranty any striping on concrete unless it has cured for a minimum of30 days. 

-True Lines does not warranty any thennoplastic striping on concrete. 
-The quoted prices are firm for 60 days. 
-True Lines will not be held l'esponsible for damages to roads, driveways, curbs or persons created by 
trespassing in designated areas or by acts of weather or tire & foot tracking from sealer. 
-All areas blocked off shall remain free & clear of all traffic until barricades & cones are removed. 
-This bid is based on qua11tities listed & only the items listed are included. Any additional work performed 
will be a change order & charged accordingly. 
-Star Seal Asphalt Sealer: Product Specification exceeds requirements for FAA, US Airforce & meets 
Federal specs for ASTMD 5727 & 490. All Sealing is a spray application & is applied at 75 PSI. 
-Owner, Property Manager, Contractor etc. is solely responsible for all communication to residents, tenants, 
maintenance workers, etc. 
-Martin County License# MCASC4 l 74 & Occupational License# 2004-275-0224 

2 
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Warranty: TL, Inc. warrants the quality and perfonnance of its services for a period of six months after the date of completion. 
Customer agrees that TL, Inc. 's obligation and liability under its warranty is expressly limited to the replacement of defective or non
confom1ing good or services at no cost to the consumer. Customer agrees that TL, Inc. does not extend any warranties, 
expressed, implied, including llny Implied wnrranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, in connection with 
its services other than those expressly set forth herein. Customer further agrees that TL.Inc, does not warrant the quality and 
performance of its services to the extent any damage thereto is caused by heavy equipment or other sub-contractors. 
Binding Nature of Contract: By executing this Contract, Customer hereby binds him, her, or Itself, his co-owners, heirs, partners, 
aftillates, subsidiaries, agents, officers, successors, assigners, & legal representatives to the terms, recitals, covenants, agreements, & 
obligations contained here witl1in. Both parties (contractor & customer) agree by binding this contract, that True Lines, Inc. is not 
responsible for injuries as a result of asphalt sealer, paint or any other products used for this prdject. 
Collection and Interest : Customer agrees to reimburse True Lines, Inc. (fL, Inc) for all reasonable costs incurred in enforcing the 
tenns of this contract. regardless of whether suit is instituted, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney fues, cost of suit, cost 
of depositions and discovery, cost for investigation, and expert witness fees. Customer further agrees TL, Inc. shall be entitled to 
collect interest at the rate of2.5% per month on all amounts due and owing to it from the date of billing for the same in the event any 
such amounts owed nnd owing are not paid within 30 days of TL, Ino.'s invoice. 
Cooperation in Scheduling: Customer agrees to cooperate with TL, Inc. in the scheduling a11d performance of TL, fnc.'s services to 
avoid delays. Customer agrees to adhere to and follow TL, Inc. 's reasonable directions and requests regarding scheduling. Customer 
further acknowledges that events outside of TL, Tnc. 's control, including, but not limited to, strikes, material supplier delays, weather, 
labor disputes, & government actions, will extend the time for TL, Inc's performance under this contract. 
NO Waiver: Any failure by TL, Inc. to insist upon customers' strict performance oftenns, covenants, & agreements of this contract 
shall not be constrned as a waiver of TL, Inc's right to declare a breach under this contract for any such breach or such breach or later 
lneaches. TL, Inc's failure to enforce ant term, condition, or agreement contained in U1is contract shall not be construed as a waiver of 
any rights it may have hereunder. 
Bnnkruptcy and Receivership: In tlte event: (!)Customer files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; (2)Customer has a involuntary 
petition in bankruptcy filed against it; or (3) Customer has a receiver appointed to conduct its operations or perform this contract, TL, 
Inc in its sole discretion may terminate this contract or insist on such additional terms to provide it with reasonable assurance t1iat 
customer will still be able to timely perform the tem1s of this contract. 
Dispute Resolution: Should customer, not TL, Inc., raise any controversy, claim or other disagreement arising out of this contract that 
cannot be settled to t1ie satisfactidn of True Lines and customer, the parties agree to seek outside mediation to resolve the customer's 
controversy or other disagreement. The parties shall share the cost of mediation equally. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit 
TL, Inc's right to seek immediate court intervention or file a mechanic's lien to collect any costs paid in connection w/mcdiation. 
Partial Invalidity; The Un-enforceability or invalidity of any terms, covenant or agreement contained herein shall not affect, impair or 
modify any other terms of this contract. In the event that any tem1 of this contract is declared invalid, the parties agree to substitution 
of a comparable enforceable term or, if hat is not possible, the excision of such in val id term with the remaining enforceable tem1s 
being unaffected by such excision. 
Customer Te1·minatlon: In the event customer tenninates this contract prior to the date True Lines completes the services provided 
for herein, TL, Inc shall be entitled to retain any amounts previously paid to it by the customer, & recover the fair market value of its 
services, the actual costs of its expenses at that time, and other amounts due and owing under this contract to the extent such costs 
exceed the nmount deposited by customer. 
Changes or Addllions to Contract: All changes or additions to contract will be in writing and will be at an agreed amount before 
work will be performed. 
lHiscell11ncous: This contract is entered into and shall be perfom1ed by True Lines, Inc. in Martin, St. Lucie, Palm Beach or Jndilll1 
River County, Florida. The customer acknowledges that he, she, or it has authority to execute this contract. Customer acknowledges 
that this contract represents the parties' entire agreement and that it has not relied on any representations, promises, or assurances by 
TL, Inc. other than those set forth herein. This contract may be executed in multiple counterparts but is not effective until True Lines 
receipt of customer's signature on this contract and customer's deposit. 
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Approved & Agreed: Per page 1 & 2 scope, uotes & conditions: 

Customer: Portofino Shore Property Association, Inc. 

Job Info: Portofino Sh-Ores- 5720 Spanish Rivel' Rd., Ft. Pierce. 

__ Agreed Price: $6,925.00 (Please initial approval in space provided) 

Contact Information & Signature Required: 

Date: __ _ 
Signature Print Title 

Address:------------ Tel: ( 

F~:( )._~~-----~ 
Thank-you for considering : 
.ffklle ~, !1.M.C... 
Ph: 772-349-4669 Fax: 772-219-0940 
2646 SW Mapp Road • Suite 303 
Palm City Fl. 34990 
Martin County License# MCASC4 l 74 
Martin County Occupational License# 2004-275-0024 

BY:·------c--------=---
Chris Slonaker-President Date 
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August 06, 2019 

Via U.S. Mail 

Ms. Beth Driggs 
U.S. Bank National Association 
Account Manager/Vice President 
Co1porate Trust Services 
225 E Robinson Street, Suite 250 
Orlando, FL 32801 

CULPEPPER & TERPENING, INC . 

CONSULTING ENGINEERS I LAND SURVEYORS 

RE: Portofino Shores COD (the "COD") 
CDD Owned and Maintained Infrastructure 
2019 Annual Report 

Dear Ms. Driggs: 

Project No. 02-037 
Reports Fil~ 

Sender'~ Email: ~matthc~@ct-cog.com 

Pursuant to the Refund Master Trust Indenture Section 7.21, we have reviewed the condition of the currently 
owned and maintained infrastructure associated witl1 the Portofino Shores CDD. Our findings are as follows: 

CDD Ownership 

In accordance with the St. Lucie County Property Appraisers website, the CDD owns the following parcels of land 
within the Portofino Shores development. The parcels are categorized by facility type. 

1. Road Right-of-Way 
The entire roadway network within the development has been completed and purchased by the Development 
District. The purchases of the individu.al parcels are as itemized as follows: 

Parcel ID No. Description Date Purchased 
1312-501-0001-000/6 Phase One Road R/W February 7, 2003 
1312-502-0001-000/9 Phase Two Road R/W February 7, 2003 
1312-502-0002-000/6 Phase Two Road R/W February 7, 2003 
1312-502-0003-000/3 Phase Two Road R/W February 7, 2003 
1312-502-0004-000/0 Phase Two Road R/W February 7, 2003 
1312-502-0005-000/7 Phase Two Road R/W February 7, 2003 
1312-502-0006-000/4 Phase Two Road R/W February 7, 2003 
1312-503-0001-000/2 Phase Three Road R/W June 8, 2004 
1312-503-0002-000/9 Phase Three Road R/W June 8, 2004 

2. Water Management System 
The entire water management system within the development has been completed and purchased by tl1e 
Development District. The purchases of the individual parcels are as itemized as follows: 

Parcel ID No. Description Date Purchased 
1312-501-0006-000/1 WMT 1 Februa1y 7, 2003 
1312-501-0007-000/8 \VMT 2 Febtuary 7, 2003 
1312-501-0008-000/5 WMT 3 Feb1uary 7, 2003 

C:\Users\smallhes\AppData\Local\Temp\02-037, 2019.08.06 Portofino Shore CDD Annual Report 2019_1345509\02-037, 2019.08.06 Portofino Shore CDD 
Annual Report 2019.docx 

A LEGACY OF EXPERTISE AND EXCE LLENC E 

2960 SOU TH 25TH STREET I FT. PIERC E, FL 34961 I (772) 464-3537 I FAX : (772) 464-9497 



3. Open Space Tracts 
The open space tracts within the development have been 
purchases of the individual parcels are as itemized as follows: 

Parcel ID No. Description 
1312-501-0002-000/3 OST 1 
1312-501-0003-000/0 OST 2 
1312-501-0004-000/7 OST 3 
1312-501-0005-000/4 OST 4 
1312-502-0007-000/1 Phase Two OST 

purchased by the Development District. 

Date Purchased 
February 7, 2003 
February 7, 2003 
Feb1u aiy 7, 2003 
Februa1y 7, 2003 
Februa1y 7, 2003 

The 

Condition of Infrastructure 
Our review of the project infrastmcture which is under ownership of the "CDD" is based upon limited research and 
review of existing documentation found in the St. Lucie County tax records and is itemized as follows: 
• All project related infrastructure for the development was completed and placed into service by the fall of 2003. 

TI1e infrastructure included the entire roadway/transportation network, both on and off-site, storm water 
collection and treatment system, potable water distribution system, reuse water irrigation system, pond water 
irrigation pumping system, and the gravity sanitary sewer collection system. It should be noted that the potable 
water distribution system, sanitary lift station and sanita1y transmission lines are fully completed and under the 
jurisdiction of St. Lucie County Utilities. 

• The above referenced infrastructure has been accepted by all of the applicable regulat01'y agencies and is 
currently in operating order. Individual home construction is also complete. 

General Infras ttucture 
The District Engineer performed a visual inspection of the development on July 21, 2019. The inspection revealed 
tl1at the visible infrastructure is in good condition commensurate with the age of ilie facilities. The paving, drainage, 
sidewalks, and common area landscaping appear to be in good working order with the following minor exceptions 
(including tlle uncorrected items noted during previous annual reports): 
• The asphalt pavement is heaving and cracking in areas adjacent to some of tlle "eyebrow" islands along Spring 

Lake Terrace, Santa Margarito Drive and Spanish River Road. This appears to be due to roots from ilie 
landscaping within tl1e island. 

• There is rninor settlement around the inlet stmctures and some minor cracks on the curb & gutters throughout 
the development. 

• The general status of the developments sidewalk system is satisfacto1y from an Americans wiili Disabilities Act 
(ADA) compliance requirements wiili a few exceptions. These locations all show the typical lifting of sidewalk 
concrete at or near existing tree root systems. The Portofino Shores Homeowners Association has 
implemented a tree root barrier installation program which is currently in process. The tree root barrier 
program is also replacing tlle sidewalks as part of the work effort. We recommend that the sidewalk system be 
monitored on an ongoing basis. 

• The existing sanitary sewer collection system has required some repairs of the sanitaty services over the past 
year. These repairs appear to be due to root intrusion from the street trees. Although the above referenced tree 
root barrier program should provide for protection of the sanitary services in ilie future, the District should 
budget for repairs to existing services in the coming year. 

Additionally, an emergency repair to the storm drainage system that coveys stormwater from the main detention lake 
to the outfall was completed in May 2019. The pipe failure was due to a separated joint along the outfall pipe in the 
section along the lake bank. Given iliat tl1is is the tlilid repair that was needed on the specific drainage system, the 
POA and District will implement an inspection program for the stormwater pipe network iliat are under the District 
roadways. 
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The District also modified the outfall pipe structure &om the community to the Ft. Pierce Farm Water Control 
District Canal to provide for a pipe extension and flap gate to limit stormwater from flowing form the canal into the 
community, as evidenced during Hurricane Irma in September 2017. This work was completed in August 2018. 

We would recommend a budget of $15,000 for the coming year for inspection, repairs and maintenance of the 
project's roadway, drainage, sanitary sewer and sidewalk infrastructure. 

Master Storm Water Lake System 
The CDD completed a lake bank restoration project in 2011 that provided shoreline reconstiuction and stabilization 
for over half of the community's master storm water lake system. Our inspection of the master lake system resulted 
in the following observations: 
• The overall lake system that was not part of the lake bank restoration program is showing signs of bank erosion 

and will need corrective actions. This includes WMT 2 (south of the guardhouse) and WMT 3 (north of the 
guardhouse. 

• WMT 1 (main lake) is showing signs of shoaling in the southern portion of the. lake. This will require some 
corrective actions in the form of dredging the shoaled areas to achieve the original minimum lake bottom 
elevations. 

• There is little to no vegetative growth present on the lake system surface. What vegetation is present is in the 
form of grasses is along portions of the lake surface adjacent to the lake bank with less than 5% lake surface area 
coverage. Additionally, it appears that the vegetation within the ponds is native and desired. We recommend 
that a professional in the field continue to review the lakes to determine if any aquatic weed control service is 
required. 

• The storm water conveyance system, consisting of the drainage inlets and culverts which connect the roadways 
to the master storm water system and the outfall from the system all appear to be in good working order with 
the exception of the emergency repair noted above. 

• The South Florida Water Management District issued a "Notice of Inspection" (maintenance) to the CDD on 
March 6, 2009 which found the preserve areas to be in good condition with minor occurrences of nuisance and 
exotic vegetation. In order to prevent the reinstatement of additional monitoring requirement regular 
maintenance should continue to be performed. 

Given the above, we would recommend that the funds accumulated for the continuation of the lake bank 
restoration efforts be utilized to provide the corrective actions required for the master lake system. 

\Y/e trust this letter report adequately addresses maintenance of the CDD owned and maintained infrastructure for 
the Portofino Shores CDD. Should you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to 
contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

Cc: Richard Hans, GMS 
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I Date 

September 20, 2019 

October 15, 2019 

I 

Portofino Shores 
Community Development District 

Check Run Summary - General Fund 

October 28, 2019 

Check Numbers 

953-957 

958-960 

Total 

Amount 

$14,895.22 

$10,486.03 

$25,381.25 I 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 10/28/19 PAGE 1 

*** CHECK DATES 08/07/2019 - 10/28/2019 *** PORTOFINO SHORES - GENERAL 
BANK A GENERAL FUND 

CHECK 
DATE 

VEND# 

9/20/19 00014 

9/20/19 00034 

. . . . . INVOICE ..... ... EXPENSED TO ... VENDOR NAME 
DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

8/13/19 86333 201907 310-51300-31100 
JUL 19 - ENGINEERING FEES 

CULPEPPER & TERPENING, INC 

9/13/19 9637 201909 300-15500-10000 
FY2020 INSURANCE RENEWAL 

EGIS INSURANCE & RISK ADVISORS 
- - - - - - - - - - - - -

9/20/19 00021 

9/20/19 00003 

9/20/19 00047 

10/15/19 00014 

10/15/19 00021 

9/01/19 181 
SEP 

9/01/19 181 
SEP 

9/01/19 181 
SEP 

9/01/19 181 
SEP 

9/01/19 181 
SEP 

9/01/19 181 
SEP 

201909 310-51300-34000 
19 - MGMT FEES 

201909 310-51300-44000 
19 - RENT 

201909 310-51300-35100 
19 - COMPUTER TIME 

201909 310-51300-49500 
19 - WEBSITE ADMIN 

201909 310-51300-42000 
i9 - POSTAGE 

201909 310-51300-42500 
19 - COPIES/PRINTS 

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES -

8/07/19 WGC-1315 201907 310-51300-31500 
JUL 19 - ATTORNEY FEES 

9/10/19 WGC-1319 201908 310-51300-31500 
AUG 19 - ATTORNEY FEES 

LEWIS, LONGMAN & WALKER, PA 

8/23/19 28895 201908 320-53800-46000 
EMERGENCY PIPE CLEANING 

SOUTH EAST SERVICES OF THE 

9/15/19 86600 201908 310-51300 31100 
AUG 19 - ENGINEERING FEES 

CULPEPPER & TERPENING, INC 

9/15/19 182 201910 310-51300-31300 
FY20 ASSESSMENT ROLL CERT 

10/01/19 183 201910 310-51300-34000 
OCT 19 - MGMT FEES 

10/01/19 183 201910 310-51300-44000 
OCT 19 - RENT 

10/01/19 183 201910 310-51300-35100 
OCT 19 - COMPUTER TIME 

10/01/19 183 201910 310-51300-49500 
OCT 19 - WEBSITE ADMIN 

PORS --PORT SHORE-- ACOOPER 

STATUS AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

* 1,847.87 

1,847.87 000953 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 6,193.00 

6,193.00 000954 
- - - - - - - - - ------

3,406.25 

* 200.00 

83.33 

* 41. 67 

2.00 

* 6.60 

3,739.85 000955 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 2,536.50 

178.00 

2,714.50 000956 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

400.00 

400.00 000957 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 605.30 

605.30 000958 

* 5,600.00 

* 3,508.42 

200.00 

* 83.33 

* 83.33 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER 
*** CHECK DATES 08/07/2019 - 10/28/2019 *** PORTOFINO SHORES - GENERAL 

BANK A GENERAL FUND 

CHECK 
DATE 

VEND# . . . . . INVOICE ..... 
DATE INVOICE 

10/01/19 183 
OCT 19 

10/01/19 183 
OCT 19 

10/01/19 183 
OCT 19 

10/15/19 00047 10/09/19 28968 

... EXPENSED TO ... VENDOR NAME 
YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

201910 310-51300-51000 
- OFFICE SUPPLIES 

201910 310-51300-42000 
- POSTAGE 

201910 310-51300-42500 
- COPIES/PRINTS 

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES -

201909 320-53800-46000 
SEWER BACK UP REPAIRED 

SOUTH EAST SERVICES OF THE 

TOTAL FOR BANK A 

STATUS 

* 

* 

* 

TOTAL FOR REGISTER 

FORS --PORT SHORE-- ACOOPER 

RUN 10/28/19 PAGE 2 

AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

3. 0 0 

2.50 

.15 

9, 480. 73 000959 

400.00 

400.00 000960 

25,381.25 

25,381.25 



Portofino Shores 
Community Development District 

Tax Collections 
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2019 

Gross 
001.300.36300.10000 021.700.36300.1000 

$ 173,024.22 $ 334,853.19 $ 507,877.41 

General Debt Total 
Date Gross Tax Commissions Discounts Interest Net Amount Fund Service Fund 

Received Received (Penalties) Received 34.07% 65.93% 65.93% 
11/9/2018 $ 2,702.07 $ $ - $ 2,702.07 $ 920.54 $ 1,781.53 $ 2,702.07 
11/9/2018 $ 4,637.44 $ 88.09 $ 232.78 $ 4,316.57 $ 1,470.57 $ 2,846.00 $ 4,316.57 

11/19/2018 $ 33,292.87 $ 639.23 $ 1,331.81 $ 31,321.83 $ 10,670.75 $ 20,651.08 $ 31,321.83 
11/22/2018 $ 36,580.79 $ 702.34 $ 1,463.35 $ 34,415.10 $ 11,724.57 $ 22,690.53 $ 34,415.10 
11/30/2018 $ 36,810.22 $ 706.94 $ 1,463.34 $ 34,639.94 $ 11,801.17 $ 22,838.77 $ 34,639.94 

12/7/2018 $ 262,009.02 $ 5,030.56 $ 10,481.10 $ 246,497.36 $ 83,976.98 $ 162,520.38 $ 246,497.36 
12/14/2018 $ 49,766.88 $ 955.72 $ 1,980.93 $ 46,830.23 $ 15,954.17 $ 30,876.06 $ 46,830.23 
12/14/2018 $ 4,966.22 $ 95.96 $ 168.08 $ 4,702.18 $ 1,601.94 $ 3,100.24 $ 4,702.18 
12/31/2018 $ 4, 184.11 $ 81.31 $ 118.64 $ 3,984.16 $ 1,357.33 $ 2,626.83 $ 3,984.16 

1/7/2019 $ 11,864.04 $ 229.97 $ 365.81 $ 11,268.26 $ 3,838.88 $ 7,429.38 $ 11,268.26 
1/10/2019 $ 1,992.05 $ 38.94 $ 44.94 $ 1,908.17 $ 650.08 $ 1,258.09 $ 1,908.17 
1/10/2019 $ 25.44 $ 25.44 $ 8.67 $ 16.77 $ 25.44 
1/11/2019 $ 6,920.69 $ 134.66 $ 187.84 $ 6,598.19 $ 2,247.88 $ 4,350.31 $ 6,598.19 
1/17/2019 $ 1,977.34 $ 39.15 $ 19.77 $ 1,918.42 $ 653.57 $ 1,264.85 $ 1,918.42 
1/24/2019 $ 988.67 $ 19.37 $ 19.77 $ 949.53 $ 323.49 $ 626.04 $ 949.53 
2/7/2019 $ 2,943.14 $ 58.27 $ 29.66 $ 2,855.21 $ 972.72 $ 1,882.49 $ 2,855.21 

1/31/2019 $ 2,966.01 $ 58.14 $ 59.31 $ 2,848.56 $ 970.45 $ 1,878.11 $ 2,848.56 
2/14/2019 $ 2,966.01 $ 58.73 $ 29.67 $ 2,877.61 $ 980.35 $ 1,897.26 $ 2,877.61 
2/21/2019 $ 988.67 $ 19.37 $ 19.77 $ 949.53 $ 323.49 $ 626.04 $ 949.53 
2/28/2019 $ 2,507.15 $ 49.75 $ 19.78 $ 2,437.62 $ 830.45 $ 1,607.17 $ 2,437.62 

3/7/2019 $ 1,977.34 $ 39.55 $ 1,937.79 $ 660.17 $ 1,277.62 $ 1,937.79 
3/21/2019 $ 7,360.81 $ 147.21 $ 7,213.60 $ 2,457.54 $ 4,756.06 $ 7,213.60 
3/29/2019 $ 1,977.34 $ 39.55 $ 1,937.79 $ 660.17 $ 1,277.62 $ 1,937.79 

4/5/2019 $ 8,898.03 $ 177.96 $ 8,720.07 $ 2,970.76 $ 5,749.31 $ 8,720.07 
4/8/2019 $ 2,169.49 $ - $ 2,169.49 $ 739.10 $ 1,430.39 $ 2,169.49 
4/9/2019 $ 48.23 $ 48.23 $ 16.43 $ 31.80 $ 48.23 

4/12/2019 $ 2,859.27 $ 57.18 $ 2,802.09 $ 954.62 $ 1,847.47 $ 2,802.09 
4/19/2019 $ 988.67 $ 18.98 $ 39.55 $ 930.14 $ 316.88 $ 613.26 $ 930.14 

5/3/2019 $ 1,977.34 $ 40.14 $ (29.66) $ 1,966.86 $ 670.07 $ 1,296.79 $ 1,966.86 
6/7/2019 $ 1,020.62 $ 20.57 $ (7.49) $ 1,007.54 $ 343.25 $ 664.29 $ 1,007.54 

6/14/2019 $ 10,220.08 $ 204.41 $ (300.48) $ 10,316.15 $ 3,514.52 $ 6,801.63 $ 10,316.15 
7/8/2019 $ - $ - $ $ 0.60 $ 0.60 $ 0.60 $ - $ 0.60 

TOTALS $ 510,512.38 $ 9,752.05 $ 17,738.27 $ 74.27 $ 483,096.33 .· :.: $ 164,582.17 $ 318,514.16 $ 483,096.33 
100.52% 

YTD gross collections $ 173,921.90 $ 336,590.48 $ 510,512.38 
Remaining gross to collect $ (897.68) $ (1,737.29) $ (2,634.97) 
Commissions $ 3,322.34 $ 6,429.71 $ 9,752.05 
Discount/Penalties $ 6,043.09 $ 11,695.18 $ 17,738.27 
Interest $ 25.30 $ 48.97 $ 74.27 
YTD Net Collections $ 164,581.78 $ 318,514.55 $ 483,096.33 



ASSETS: 

Cash 
Investments: 

State Board 
Series 2013: 

Reserve 
Revenue 
Prepayment 
Cost of Issuance 

Prepaid Expenses 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts Payable 

FUND BALANCES: 

Non-Spendable 
Prepaid Expenses 

Restricted for Debt Service 
Restricted for Capital Projects 
Unassigned 

PORTOFINO SHORES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
September 30, 2019 

Governmental Fund T)r!Qes 
Debt Capital 

General Service Projects 

$110,506 

$355,436 

$316,608 
$146,394 

$2,074 
$8,235 

$6, 193 

$472,136 $465,076 $8,235 

$1,005 

$6, 193 

$465,076 
$8,235 

$471, 130 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $472, 136 $465,076 $8,235 

Page 1 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

2019 

$110,506 

$355,436 

$316,608 
$146,394 

$2,074 
$8,235 
$6, 193 

$945,447 

$1,005 

$6, 193 

$465,076 
$8,235 

$471,130 

$945,447 



PORTOFINO SHORES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

& Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Period Ended September 30, 2019 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 
BUDGET THRU 09/30/19 THRU 09/30/19 VARIANCE 

REVENUES: 

Maintenance Assessments $162,643 $162,643 $164,583 $1,940 
Interest/Misc Income $0 $0 $9,130 $9,130 

TOTAL REVENUES $162,643 $162,643 $173,713.14 $11,070 

EXPENDITURES: 

ADMINISTRATIVE: 
Engineering $15,000 $15,000 $14,964 $36 
Assessment Roll $5,600 $5,600 $5,600 $0 
Property Appraiser $5,100 $5,100 $5,079 $21 
Attorney $35,000 $35,000 $14,937 $20,063 
Annual Audit $3,400 $3,400 $3,600 ($200) 
Trustee Fees $4,000 $4,000 $2,963 $1,037 
Management Fees $40,875 $40,875 $40,875 $0 
Computer Time $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $0 
Telephone $0 $0 $19 ($19) 
Postage $1,200 $1,200 $646 $554 
Printing & Binding $865 $865 $413 $451 
Rentals & Leases $2,400 $2,400 $2,400 $0 
Insurance $6,646 $6,646 $6,042 $604 
Legal Advertising $1,000 $1,000 $300 $700 
Other Current Charges $1,250 $1,250 $904 $346 
Website Compliance $500 $500 $500 ($0) 
Office Supplies $400 $400 $92 $308 
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0 
Capital Outlay $250 $250 $0 $250 
Contingencies $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000 

Total Administrative $129,660 $129,660 $100,508 $29,152 

FIELD: 
Repairs & Maintenance $10,000 $10,000 $17,605 ($7,605) 
Roadway Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000 
Lake Bank Restoration $25,000 $25,000 $0 $25,000 

Total Field $40,000 $40,000 $17,605 $22,395 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $169,660 $169,660 $118,114 $51,547 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures ($7,017) ($7,017) $55,600 $62,617 

Net change in fund balance ($7,017) ($7,017) $55,600 $62,617 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $100,666 $415,531 

FUND BALANCE - Ending $93,649 $471,130 
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PORTOFINO SHORES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

& Changes in Fund Balances 'I 

For the Period Ended September 30, 2019 i 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 
BUDGET THRU 09/30/19 THRU 09/30/19 VARIANCE 

REVENUES: 

Special Assessments-On Roll $315,378 $315,378 $318,514 $3,136 
Interest Income $0 $0 $10,099 $10,099 

TOTAL REVENUES $3151378 $315,378 $328,612 $13,234 

EXPENDITURES: 

Series 2013: 
Interest Expense - 11/1 $66,424 $66,424 $66,424 $0 
Interest Expense - 05/1 $66,424 $66,424 $66,332 $92 
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000) 
Principal Expense - 5/01 $185,000 $185,000 $185,000 $0 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $317,848 $3171848 $322,756 ($4,908) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures ($2,470) ($2,470) $5,856 $8,326 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) 

lnterfund Transfer ln/(out) $0 $0 $157 $157 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $157 $157 

Net change in fund balance ($2,470) ($2,470) $61013 $8,483 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $131,111 $459,063 

FUND BALANCE - Ending $128,641 $465,076 

Page 3 



PORTOFINO SHORES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

For the Period Ended September 30, 2019 

ADOPTED PRORATED ACTUAL 
BUDGET THRU 09/30/19 THRU 09/30/19 VARIANCE 

REVENUES: 

Interest Income $0 $0 $157 $157 

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $157 $157 

EXPENDITURES: 

Cost of Issuance $0 $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures $0 $0 $157 $157 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) 

lnterfund Transfer ln/(Out) $0 $0 ($157) ($157) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 ($157} ($157} 

Net change in fund balance $0 $0 $0 $0 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $290,053 $8,235 

FUND BALANCE - Ending $290,053 $8,235 
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PORTOFINO SHORES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Bond Issue: 
Original Issue Amount: 
Interest Rate: 
Maturity Date: 
Reserve Fund Requirement: 

Bonds outstanding - 9/30/13 
Less: 5/1/2014 

5/1/2015 
11/1/2015 
5/1/2016 
11/1/2016 
5/1/2017 
5/1/2018 
11/1/2018 
5/1/2019 

Current Bonds Outstanding: 

Series 2013 Special Assessment Refunding Bonds 
$4,450,000 

3.68% 
May 1, 2033 
Lesser of: 
(i) Max Annual Debt Service for Bonds Outstanding 
(ii) 125% of Average Debt Service for Bonds Outstanding 
(iii) 10% of Original proceeds 

$4,450,000 
($155,000) 
($160,000) 

($5,000) 
($165,000) 

($10,000) 
($170,000) 
($175,000) 

($5,000) 
($185,000) 

$3,420,000 
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